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HERBERT T. WRIGHT, JR.

Circuit Judge
401 West Markham, Suite 440
Little Rock, 72201
SIXTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT Phone: (501) 340-8593 PULAE*S LmEZERRY
FOURTH DIVISION Fax: (501) 340-8322 | | |

RECEIVED
May 2, 2011 - MaY 0 2

Mr. Claiborne H. Ferguson
Attorney at Law

100 North Main, Suite 3118
Memphis, TN 38103

Re: State vs. Abdulakhim Mujah Muhammad
CR 2009-2626 |

Dear Mr. Ferguson:

Enclosed is a copy of a document received by this office on Friday afternoon, April 29,
2011. The original will be placed in the case file in the Pulaski County Circuit’s Office.

If I may be of any assistance to you, please contact me.
Sincerely, |

Jack Tucker |

Law Clerk

Enc.

Cc:  John Johnson
Patrick Benca
File
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF PULASKI COUNTY, ARKANSAS
. FOURTH DIVISION

STATE OF ARKANSAS | - PI@T[FF
VS. B NO. CR 2009-2626 N @-/

CR 10-1232 FILED 0302711 1153834
. : .
CR 10-1233 o Larry Lrang Pulaski |0 reui ¢ CLar
CRO 14 Lhed
CR 2010-1823 | |
(CR 2010-393‘5
ADULHAKIM MUHAMMAD - _ DEFENDANT

NOTICE OF AFF IRMATIVE DEF ENSES
In support, Defendant states: |

I. The Court gave Counsel until May 5, 2011 to notify the State as to what defende

intends on using in the above referenced matters.

2. This notice serves as formal notification that Defendant was suffering from both

mental disease and mental defect at the time of the alleged acts. The reports supporting these

defenses will be provided to the State as soon as they are made available and will be prior _tb Court

imposed deadline of May 5, 2011,

AR Bar No 99020

BENCA & BENCA

1311 S. Broadway St.

Little Rock, AR 72202 |
(501)353-0024 / fax: (501)246-3101
E-mail: PJBenca@aol.com |

CLAIBORNE H. FERGUSON

AR Bar No. 2010016 |
100 North Main, Suite 3118
Memphis, TN 38103 | |
(901)529-6400 / fax: (901)202-2053

TN - et 1 @5 com

PULASKT €O 05/02/2011 11:39 AN
CIRCULT CORT NTGO
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Patrick J. Benca, do hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing pleading has

been placed in the box marked as Prosecuting Attorney at the Pulaski County Courthouse on M4y
2, 2011. | | ~ | |




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF PULASKI COUNTY, ARKANSAS
FOURTH DIVISION

STATE OF ARKANSAS PLAINTIFF

'. . -\
VS, NQ. CR 10-3956

R09-2626
CR10-1233
CR10-1232
CR10-1823

ABDULHAKIM MUHAMMAD DEFENDANT

ORDER

On this | day of March, 2011, comes this Order to supply
opposing counse] the following information no later than April 15, 2011;
 The name(s) of any expert to be called as witness(es) regarding the
mental status of the defendant in the above referenced cases, the report of
that witness(es) or the report(s) to be relied upon by that witness(es)
regarding the mental status of the defendant and the Curriculum Vitae of the

witness(es).
IT IS SO ORDERED. 7 M ’jf/
CIRCUIT JUDGE
Hlll”ﬂlﬂﬂl|ﬂ|ﬂ|ll|ll|ll””lllllllmmll DATE
60CR-10-3956  601-60100023965-073
) B ihn s
CIRGUIT COURT e ﬂgﬁgg Eﬁg ?igi?é';lgzk?aﬂﬁcmt CLerk
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DEFENSE ATTORNEY: _ STRTE V ABDULHAKIM MUJAHID MU | Page
| - PULASKT CO 03/15/2011 11:31 am
CIRCUIT COURT NT70

In The Circuit Court of Pulaski County, Arkansas

=
2,

e, EHTE = S AR ERT O,

)

Fourth Division
401 West Markham
LED G3/715711 11:31:09

Suite 440 ¢ Little Rock, A Irru Crane Pulaski Circuit Clark
(501) 340-8593 W

STATE OF ARKANSAS

VS R Case No: CR

WE WISH TO ADVISE THAT THE ABOVE CASE CHARGING WITH THE OFFENSE

£ _:/"‘Zg/ f Doge e
OF LAl re HAS BEEN SET FOR:

F
3
k_‘ £ £
. - a
F

-
-
-

OMNIBUS HEARING:

."'-'f ‘t
'

JURYTRIAL:. L/t “ 5, /) AT: _9:00 a.m.

P

JURY WAIVER & MOTION CUTOEF:

BY RECEIPT OF THIS NOTICE YOU ARE HEREBY ADVISED THAT
FAILURETO APPEAR AT EITHERTHE OMNIBUS HEARING ORTHE JURY
TRIAL WILL RESULT IN THE IMMEDIATE ISSUANCE OF AN ALIAS
WARRANT FOR YOUR ARREST.

COPY TO HERBERT T. WRIGHT, JR.
[FDefendant’s Attorney - CIRCUIT JUDGE

Q’ﬁefendant

[J)-Prosecutor \“’3
1 Bonding Company

- .
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 DEFENSE ATTORNEY: T,

- InThe Clrcuit Court of Pulaski Cou nty, Arkans as

Fourth Division

401 W. Markham

‘Suite 440 « Little Rock, AR Fuep a9t 1314y
(501) 340-8593 %Jar ry Lrane Wia‘ékz .Eiraazt Clerk

~ STATE OF ARKANSAS

Oy

B0CR-10-3966  601-60100023526-040
STATE V' ABOULHEKIN MUJRHID MU { Page
PULASKI GO 03/09/2011 OF:14 P

‘We wish to advise that in the above case__ CIRCUIT COURT N1z

- charging the offense of

__in the 4th Division, Circutt Court,

. Please be notified that your presence is required.'

COPYTO ~  HERBERTT. WRIGHT, JR.
,D—Défendants Attorney - CIRCUIT JUDGE R
 [4Defendant -

ClProsecutor 4.
. Bondmg Comprany




A RKANSAS vioral
DEPARTMENT OF D seonavioral

H HUMAN “ Af\rkcmsas Slfafe 'I('Iospifg|205 00
305 S. Paim St. o Little Rock, AR 7 -
=t SERVICES 501-686-9000 * TDD: 501-686-9176

w

February 14, 2011

Sheriff Doc Holladay

2900 S Woodrow ep a3/0341 tesz2idl o
FIL‘:[) EJ.I"..':’ Pﬂ'iaighl 21{'!:1_-!11: Clark

thﬂ.e ROCk AR 72204 | La i i: f'aﬂ&

RE: Cleveland Matherne; CR 2010-2686 / | | OA/\
RE: Adbul Muhammad; CR 2010-3956
RE: Willis Robinson Jr.; CR 2010-2430

Dear Sheriff Holladay:

The above named individual was ordered for a forensic evaluation through Pulaski County Circuit Court._._
this evaluation has been compieted.

Thank you for your assistance in this matter. If you have any questions or concerns, please call me at
(501) 686-9174.

Sincerely,

- Billy Burris
Diarector of Forensic Services

BB:rh

CC:  Pulaski County Circuit Clerk

I

60CR-10-3956  601-60100023674-06D
STATE ¥ ABDULHAKIM MUJRHID MU 1 Page
PULASKT €0 B3/03/2011 04:22 P
CIRCUIT COURT FIT3T

www.arkansas.gov/dhs
Serving more than one million Arkansans each year




A RKANSAS - pivicion of Behavmrul

- Sincerely,

: D1rect0r of Furensm Servmes

g DEPARTYTMENT OF R "Health Services |
b H“MAN o  Arkansas jtate Hospital
| ' " 3055, Palm St = Litle Rock, AR 72205-4094
aih SERVICES ) - 501-686-9000 « TDD: 501-686-9176
Februars;_lr-l, 2011

" -Sheriff Doc Holladay

Z?UGSWoodmw: | 'Z;H:D—"’ o o '-‘IL'.:E:* B:ﬁfm.fiz 15.5929(/1/\

thtlgRackA_R?ZZDz} : SR - Larrs ﬁraﬂe Prlaski E:Ii"’l.’.:f.-llf Elerk.

| RE: Cleveland Matherne; CR 2010-2686

RE: Adbul Muhammad; CR 2010-3956

- RE: Willis Robinson Jr.; CR 20102430

Dear Sheriff Hoiladay:

The abnve named individual was ordered fur a forensic evaluanan through Pujaski Cmmty Circuit Court,

'~ this evaluation has been campleted

Thank you for your assistance in this matter If you have any questmns or concerns, please call ine at
(501)686 9174, o | | S

AW

- /s T BR-100956  6O1-G100022605018
- o S - STRTE ' BDULHAKIN MUJAHID MU ¢ Page
o S : . PULRSKT €O 0370012611 @114 P

Bllly Burris :
T I

BB:rh

CC: Pulaski County Circuit Clerk

- N wwwarkansas gow"dhs
Senrmg more than one mxllmn Arkansans each year




A RKANSGSAS _ .
"DEPARTMENT OF ~ Dwﬁ':cﬂ,ﬁfsaeertiac‘gsoml

“"MA“ | .f\rkansas Sltate If(-lospital |
| 305 S. Palm St. » Litlle Rock, AR 72205-4096
SERVICES

~ 501-686-9000 = TDD: 501-686-2176

X

FILED 62;'14; 11 10823149
Larry Dane: Fs.u :ﬁinl mra..m’c Clerk ~

February 7, 2011 - P

Honorab le Herb Wri ght

4™ Division |

401 West Markham Street | RE: MUHAMMAD, ADBUL
Little Rock, AR 72201 | AR Code Section: 5-2-305

Examination Date: 01/29/11 | L
Pulaski County Docket No.: CR 2010-3956 -\!

Dear Judge Wright:

The above named individual was ordered for a forensic evaluation through the Pulaski
County Circuit Court. Attached you will find the completed forensic report performed at
the Arkansas State Hospital Forensm Semces

If you have any questions or concerns, please call me at {501} 686-9286.

BOCR-16-3956  601-60100022656-047

Administrative Specialist _
MIMSTAIVe Spetit™ , STATE V RBDULHAKIM MUJRHID K 6 Pages
o | PULASKT €O @2/14/2811 10:23 Aif
| . CIRCUIT GOURT FIAS0
~cc:  John Johnson, Prosecuting Attomey | |
Patrick Benca, Defense Attorney
Pulaski County Circuit Clerk
~ Billy Burris, DBHS, Arkansas State HOSpltal
File
| m.mkmm.govfdhs

Serving more than one million Arkansans each year



Arkansas Department of Human Services
Division of Mental Health Services
~ Arkansas State Hospital

Addendum to Forensic Report

' IDENTIFYING INFORMATION:

DEFENDANT: Abdul Hakim Muhammad |
DATE OF BIRTH: 7/9/85 AGE: 25

' DEFENDANT’S HOSPITAL NUMBER: 702421 | |
CHARGES AND DOCKET NUMBERS: Battery 2nd Degree (CR 10-3956)
DATE OF COURT ORDER: 12/22/10 B -
DATE OF EXAMINATION: 1/29/11 | | | o
PLACE OF EXAMINATION: Forensic Unit of the Arkansas State Hospital
DATE REPORT SUBMITTED: 2/7/11 | | a |
REFERRED BY: The Circuit Court of Pulaski County, 4th Division

The following information is an addendum to the Forensic Report dated 7/12/10 and
8/13/10. . | o | -

INTERVIEW AND DISCLOSURE OF NON-CONFIDENTIALITY:

" At the outset of the examination | reminded Mr. Muhammad of the nature and purpose
of the examination, that his participation was voluntary and not confidential, that a report
would be made to the court and that testimony may be required. | reminded Mr.
Muhammad that he did not have to answer questions or make any self-incriminatory
statements. | informed the defendant that, because he had also been charged with a
crime that could lead to the death penalty, anything he told me might also be used in the
Capital Murder case in determination of his sentence if found guilty. He indicated that he
understood and was willing to be interviewed. -

'FORENSIC EXAMINATION

OFFICIAL VERSION OF THE OFFENSE:

The Pulaski County Sheriff's Case Summary documented the f'ollowing:'

On October 25, 2010, Inmate Abdul Hakim Muhammad battered PCSO
Detention Lt. Emory Martin. While attempting to let Inmate Muhammad from his
cell to take a shower, Inmate Muhammad charged at Lt. Martin and struck him in
the back of the head. Inmate Bledsoe was sprayed with OC Pepper Spray by
Sgt. Hoof, but Inmate Muhammad continued to resist. Additional Detention




personnel respondéd and Inmate Muhammad was finally subdued. Lt. Martin
sustained a minor laceration i in the back of his head.

The Pulaski County Sherlﬁ’s Officer Supplemental Report dated 10/25/10 documented
the following:

At approximately 2130 hours | went to T-Unit to assist the deputie_s in moving
inmate Jackson, Michael from T-302 to a sub day room. When that was finished,
| went to the lower front sub day room to help them move inmate Muhammad,
Abdulhakim M. | swept and mopped, T-326, the cell he was being transferred to.
When | stepped out of T-326 inmate Muhammad was walking toward the shower
with handcuffs on his wrists, in preparation for a strip search. Sgt. Lyons, Deputy
James and Deputy Roe were walking with him. | stepped aside to let them pass.
Inmate Muhammad raised both hands, took a giant step and lunged at me. |
turned my head to protect my face and he hit me in the back of the head with the
handcuffs. | twisted away and fell to the floor. Sgt. Lyons, Deputy Roe, Sgt. Hoof
and Deputy James pushed inmate Muhammad to the floor. He began fighting
with them. | got up and attempted several times to get on top of him with my right
knee to help hold him down. Sgt. Hoof called a Code Blue (Deputy Needs
Assistance) at approximately 2041 hours. Inmate Muhammad continued to fight
‘and kick while on the floor. Sgt. Hoof administered oleoresin capsicum (OC)
spray to inmate Muhammad'’s eyes and nose. He fought harder. | got back to my
feet and began picking up radios, keys, pagers and the body alarm to keep them
away from inmate Muhammad. Other deputies arrived and assisted in getting
him under control and in the shower decontamination...

DEFENDANT’S ACCOUNT OF THE OFFENSE:

According to M. Muhammad. the alleged victim had set up a situation so that Mr.
Muhammad could attack him. He explained that the alleged victim wanted Mr.

~ Muhammad to hit him so that he could file more charges against him. He stated that the

officer had previously filed terroristic threatening charges against him. Mr. Muhammad
said that he planned on retaliating against the officer because he had urinated on his
cloths in the past. He stated that he knew his clothes had been urinated on because he
could smell the urine:on them. |

Mr. Muhammad stated, the day of the alleged incident, he had been handcuffed in the
front of his body and not in the standard behind the back manner. He attributed this
change in routine as an invitation to hit the officer. Secondly, immediately before he hit
the officer, the officer had stood between him and the shower “standmg like, ‘What you
gonna do?”

The defendant stated that he waited until the officer moved past him so that he could
strike him in the back of the head. He said that he waited until that moment to hit the
officer “to catch him off guard.” He stated that he did not hit the other officers because
they had not been the ones to urinate on his clothes in the past.”

Muhammad, Abduthakim




INTERVIEW.

At the outset of the interview Mr. Muhammad stated that he remembered meeting with
- me on the prior occasions. When | asked far him to update me on what had happened
to him since our last meeting he gave a logical and consistent history. He stated that he
went to court and tried to plea guilty to capital murder, but he was not allowed to enter
that plea at that time. He reported that, at court on 12/21/10, his lawyer had asked for
another Act 3 evaluation because his lawyer had claimed that his mental state had
deteriorated due to being in solitary confinement for 23 hours a day. He stated that the
judge allowed for ancther evaluation in “good faith” because the judge “didn't want to do
it over again.” Mr. Muhammad said that his capital murder trial was scheduled to begin
on 2/23/11. | ~

Mr. Muhammad stated that he had just graduated off disciplinary status on 1/20/11. He
described the 4 times he had been placed under disciplinary status and his behaviors
that earned the restriction. | commented that he appeared much more well kemp from
the last time | have interviewed him. He said that previously he had been growing out
- his hair to have dreadlocks. He also described refusing to talk to people his lawyer had
hired to interview him. Mr. Muhammad stated that he had changed his actions because
~he did not want to do anything further to delay his trial. He explained that previously he
refused interviews because he thought it would speed up his trial. Now, he described
feeling that if he cleaned up his hygiene and participated in all interviews he would not
inadvertently delay his trial further. He said that he expected to meet with the
psychologist hired by his attorney next week. He said that he had threatened to fire his
lawyers in the past because he thought they were attempting to delay the trial on
purpose. He said, “Sitting in county jail for 20 months was pissing me off.” He wanted to
“hurry up and get it over.” Mr. Muhammad: stated that now he’s “come to realize it's
going to take awhile.” |

Mr. Muhammad stated that he had been reading about his court case in the newspaper.
He spoke about reading excerpts of my previous reports that had been printed in the
paper. He said that he had agreed with all the information and my accompanying
~ opinions that he had read. | asked him if he had read anything that had been
inadvertently inaccurate about his history anh he said, “No.” |

The defendant described his mood at the time of the interview as “normal.” He said that
he had been sleeping “good” and he continued to do things he found interesting while
incarcerated. For example, he read the Quran, Bible, the Psalms and newspapers. He

denied any hallucinations, delusions, or thoughts of self harm. When | asked how he

had been holding up in solitary confinement he replied, “I'm in a room 23 hour. Anybody
would act different, but my mental state is normal. There’s no one to talk or mess with
you or cause problems. It’s like a lion in a cage and you poke him with a broomstick.
Pretty soon he'll bite. It's caged. People tried that with me and they suffered forit”

Muhammad, Abdulhakim




Mr. Muhammad stated that he was prescribed no medications at the time of this
interview. He also descried the one time he had been placed on suicide watch while
incarcerated. He stated that he had written his will and the jailers took it as a suicide
gesture and placed him on suicide watch for three days. He explained that he had just
“rewritten his will because the FBI has seized his original when they took his safe.

EXAMINATION OF FITNESS TO PROCEED:

On 1/2911, | admmlstered the Fltness Interview Test - Rewsed (FIT-R) to Mr. '
Muhammad. The FIT-R is a structured interview that assists in the assessment of a
defendant’s understanding of the trial process and issues related to his own defense.

Mr. Muhammad stated his primary lawyer was Claiborne Ferguson and his secondary
lawyer from the public defender’s office was Patrick Benca. Mr. Muhammad reported
that he was being tried in state court and not federal court for several reasons. He said
that the primary reason charges had been filed in state court was because they could
seek the death penalty. Secondly, he said that he had been under federal surveillance
and the federal government did not want to have to disclose their anti-terrorist
- surveillance information in a courtroom trial. Finally, he said that he might still have to
face federal charges, but that they wanted to wait to file until his present charges are
ruled upon so that they do not repeat any mistakes that the state prdsecutors mlght
make. |

According to the defendant, if found gmlty of this present charge it ceuld be used |
against him in his capital murder charge during the sentencing phase. He said that the
prosecutors were seeking the death penalty against him. He said that, if found guilty in
his capital murder case, he would go to Varner Supermax prison and that “automatic
appeals” in his case would be filed. He stated that he read in the paper that a possible
sentence for his charge could be 12 years.

| Mr. Muhammad stated that he was charged with “2nd Degree Battery.” He stated that
this was a serious charged because it was a felony and could be used against him in his
capital murder charge. When asked if he thought that people might be afraid of him
because of what he is charged with he replied, “Maybe or maybe not. They portray me
as a killer and violent. Semeene who does violence because he wants to He eannet |
control myself. So they say.”

The defendant stated that he had been in court roughly ten times befere He stated that
he role of his lawyer was “to defend me from these charges.” He described the role of
the prosecutor as “to prosecute me, to prove I'm guilty.” He described the role of the jury
as, “decides innocent or guilty.” He stated that there were 12 jury members and they
- were selected by the prosecutor and defense attorney. He said that “all” the jurors had
to believe that he was guilty to be eenwcted He described the rele of the witnesses as.
- “to tell what they wrtnessed " |

- Muhammad, Abdulhakim




1. At the time of the alleged conduct, Mr. Muhammad did not have mental djSease |
or defect that would have rendered him incapable of conforming his actions to
lawful requirements. | | | o

2. Mr. Muhammad demonstrated that he had the'ability to control his beljaviors at
the time of the alleged offenses of as evidenced by his ability to wait until an
opportune moment to catch the alleged victim off guard before he hit him.

3. The defendant stated that he hit the alleged victim in retaliation for his assertion
that the officer had previously urinated on his cloths. Retaliation is a reasonable
and rational explanation for his actions unrelated to mental disease or defect.

Respectfully,

R. Clint Gray, M.D.
Forensic Psychiatrist
Arkansas State Hospital

Muhammad, Abdulhakim -




N SAS Divi '-un of Behgviorul
:nll':n:usur oF - I?I|eu|‘l'h Services

“um Arkansas State Hospitol
' 205 S. Palm St ¢ Little Rock, AR 72205-40%6
.Y SERVICES 501-436-9000 * TDD: 5016869176

FILED 0z/707/11 15899145
Larry Crane Pulaskl Circwit Clerk

February 7, 2011 Clerk S
I-Emnrable Herb Wright

4" Division

401 West Markham Street RE: MUHAWAD, ;;gSBUL
Little Rock, AR 72201 AR. Code Section: >-2-

Examination Date: 01/29/11
Pulaski County Docket No.: CR 2010-3956

Dear Judge Wright:

The above named individual was ordered for a forensic evaluation t}ﬂough the Pulaski
County Circuit Court. Attached you will find the completed forensic report pesformed at
the Arkansas State Hospital Forensic Services.

If you bave any questions or CONCCINS, please call me at {501} 686-9280.

LT

60CR-10-3956  601-60100022513-012

Administrative Specialist STATE V ABDULHAKIM MUJRHLD M 6 Pages
PULASK] (0 02/07/2011 03:59 PN

tf CIRCUIT GOURT F1A50
cc:  John Johnson, Prom:tingﬁttnme}'

Patrick Benca, Defense Aftorney

Pulaski County Circuit Clerk |

Billy Burris, DBHS, Arkansas State Hospital

File

www.arkansas.gov/dhs

Surving more than one million Arkansans each year




Arkansas Department of Human Services
Division of Mental Health Services
Arkansas State Hospital

Addendum to Forensic Report

IDENTIFYING INFORMATION:

DEFENDANT: Abdul Hakim Muhammad
DATE OF BIRTH: 7/9/85 AGE: 25
- DEFENDANT'S HOSPITAL. NUMBER: 702421
CHARGES AND DOCKET NUMBERS: Battery 2nd Degree (CR 10-3956)
DATE OF COURT ORDER: 12/22/10
DATE OF EXAMINATION: 1/29/11
PLACE OF EXAMINATION: Forensic Unit of the Arkansas State Hospitat
DATE REPORT SUBMITTED: 2/7/11
REFERRED BY: The Circuit Court of Pulaski County, 4th Division

The following information is an addendum to the Forensic Report dated 7/12/110 and
8/13/10.

INTERVIEW AND DISCLOSURE OF NON-CONFIDENTIALITY:

At the outset of the examination | reminded Mr. Muhammad of the nature and purpose
of the examination, that his participation was voluntary and not confidential, that a report
would be made to the court and that testimony may be required. | reminded Mr.
Muhammad that he did not have to answer questions or make any self-incriminatory
statements. | informed the defendant that, because he had also been charged with a
crime that could lead to the death penaity, anything he told me might also be used in the
Capital Murder case in determination of his sentence if found guilty, He indicated that he
understood and was willing to be interviewed.

'FORENSIC EXAMINATION

OFFICIAL VERSION OF THE OFFENSE!

The Pulaski County Sheriffs Case Summary documented the following:

On October 25 2010, Inmate Abdul Hakim Muhammad battered PCS0
Detention Lt. Emory Martin. While attempting to let Inmate Muhammad from his
cell to take & shower, Inmate Muhammad charged at Lt. Martin and struck him in
the back of the head. Inmate Bledsoe was sprayed with OC Pepper Spray by
Sgt. Hoof, but Inmate Muhammad continued to resist. Additional Detention




personnel responded and Inmate Muhammad was finally subdued. Lt. Martin
sustained a minor laceration in the back of his head.

The Pulaski County Sheriffs Officer Supplemental Report dated 10/25/10 documented
the following:

At approximately 2130 hours | went to T-Unit to assist the deputies in moving
inmate Jackson, Michael from T-302 to a sub day room. When that was finished,
| went to the lower front sub day room to help them move inmate Muhammad,
Abdulhakim M. | swept and mopped, T-326, the cell he was being transferred to.
When | stepped out of T-326 inmate Muhammad was walking toward the shower
with handcuffs on his wrists, in preparation for a strip search. Sgt. Lyons, Deputy
James and Deputy Roe were walking with him. | stepped aside to let them pass.
Inmate Muhammad raised both hands, took a giant step and lunged at me. |
turned my head fo protect my face and he hit me in the back of the head with the
handcuffs. | twisted away and fell to the floor. Sgt. Lyons, Deputy Roe, Sgt. Hoof
and Deputy James pushed inmate Muhammad to the floor. He began fighting
with them. | got up and attempted several times to get on top of him with my right
knee to help hold him down. Sgt. Hoof called a Code Blue (Deputy Needs
Assistance) at approximately 2041 hours. Inmate Muhammad continued to fight
and kick while on the floor. Sgt. Hoof administered oleoresin capsicum (OC})
spray to inmate Muhammad's eyes and nose. He fought harder. 1 got back to my
feet and began picking up radios, keys, pagers and the body alarm to keep them
away from inmate Muhammad. Other deputies arrived and assisted in getling
him under controf and in the shower decontamination... |

DEFENDANT’S ACCOUNT OF THE OFFENSE:

According to Mr. Muhammad, the alleged victim had set up a situation so that Mr.
Muhammad could attack him, He explained that the alleged victim wanted Mr.
Muhamimad to hit him so that he could file more charges against him. He stated that the
officer had previously filed terroristic threatening charges against him. Mr. Muhammad
said that he planned on retaliating against the officer because he had urinated on his
cloths in the past, He stated that he knew his clothes had been urinated on because he
could smell the urine on them. |

Mr. Muhammad stated the day of the alleged incident.' he had been handcuffed in the
front of his body and not in the standard behind the back manner. He attributed this
change in routine as an invitation to hit the officer. Secondly, immediately before he hit

the officer, the officer had stood between him and the shower “standing like, “What you
gonna do?”

The defendant stated that he waited until the officer moved past him so that he couid
strike him in the back of the head. He said that he waited until that moment 10 hit the
officer “to catch him off guard.” He stated that he did not hit the other officers because
they had not been the ones to urinate on his clothes in the past.”
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INTERVIEW:

At the outset of the interview Mr. Muhammad stated that he remembered meeting with
me on the prior occasions. When | asked for him to update me on what had happened
to him since our last meeting he gave a logical and consistent history. He stated that he
went to court and tried to plea guilty to capital murder, but he was nat allowed 10 enter
that plea at that time. He reported that, at court on 12/21/10, his lawyer had asked for
another Act 3 evaluation because his lawyer had claimed that his mental state had
deteriorated due to being in solitary confinement for 23 hours a day. He stated that the
judge allowed for another evaluation in "good faith” because the judge “didn’t want to do
it over again.” Mr. Muhammad said that his capital murder frial was scheduled 1o begin
on 2/23/11. |

Mr. Muhammad stated that he had just graduated off disciplinary status on 1/20/11. He
described the 4 times he had been placed under disciplinary status and his behaviors
that earned the restriction. | commented that he appeared much more well kemp from
the last time | have interviewed him. He said that previously he had been growing out
his hair to have dreadlocks. He also described refusing to talk to people his lawyer had
hired to interview him. Mr. Muhammad stated that he had changed his actions because
he did not want to do anything further to delay his trial. He explained that previously he
refused interviews because he thought it would speed up his trial. Now, he described
feeling that if he cleaned up his hygiene and participaied in all interviews he would not
inadvertently delay his frial further. He said that he expecied to meet with the
psychologist hired by his attorney next week. He said that he had threatened to fire his
lawyers in the past becsuse he thought they were attempting to delay the trial on
purpose. He said, “Sitting in county jail for 20 months was pissing me off.” He wanted 10
“hurry up and get it over.” Mr. Muhammad stated that now he’s “come to realize it's
going to take awhile.”

Mr. Muhammad stated that he had been reading about his court case in the newspaper.
He spoke about reading excerpts of my previous reports that had been printed in the
paper. He said that he had agreed with all the information and my accompanying
opinions that he had read. | asked him if he had read anything that had been
inadvertently inaccurate about his history and he said, "No.”

The defendant described his mood at the time of the interview as “nomnmal.” He said that
he had been sleeping "good” and he continued 1o do things he found interesting while
incarcerated. For example, he read the Quran, Bible, the Psalms and newspapers. He
denied any hallucinations, delusions, or thoughts of self harm. When | asked how he
had been holding up in solitary confinement he replied, “'m in a room 23 hour. Anybody
would act different, but my mental state is normal. There's no one to talk or mess with
you or cause problems. It's like a lion in a cage and you poke him with a broomstick.
Pretty soon he'li bite. If's caged. People tried that with me and they suffered for it.”
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Mr. Muhammad stated thet he was prescribed no medications at the time of this
interview. He also descried the one time he had been placed on suicide watch while
incarcerated. He stated that he had written his will and the jallers took it as a suiqide
gesture and placed him on suicide watch for three days. He explained that he had jtist
rewiitten his will because the FB! has seized his original when they took his safe.

EXAMINATION OF FITNESS TO PROCEED:

On 1/26/11, | administered the Fitness Interview Test - Revised (FIT-R) to Mr.
Muhammad. The FIT-R is a structured interview that assists in the assessment of a
defendant's understanding of the trial process and issues related 1o his own defense.

Mr. Muhammad stated his primary lawyer was Claiborne Ferguson and his secondary
lawyer from the public defender’s office was Patrick Benca. Mr. Muhammad reported
that he was being tried in state court and not federal court for several reasons. He said
that the primary reason charges had been filed in state court was because they could
seek the death penalty. Secondly, he said that he had been under federal surveillance
and the federal govemment did not want to have to disclose their anti-terrorist
surveillance information in a courtroom trial. Finally, he said that he might stit have to
face federal charges, but that they wanted to wait to file until his present charges are
ruled wpon 50 that they do not repeat any mistakes that the staie prosecutors might
make.

According to the defendant, if found guilty of this present charge it could be used
against him in his capital murder charge during the sentencing phase. He said that the
prosecutors were seeking the death penalty against him. He said that, if found guilty in
hie capital murder case, he would go to Vamer Supermax prison and that “automatic
appeals” in his case would be filed. He stated that he read in the paper that a possible
sentence for his charge could be 12 years.

Mr. Muhammad stated that he was charged with “2nd Degree Battery.” He stated that
this was a serious charged because it was a felony and could be used against him in his
capital murder charge. When asked if he thought that people might be afraid of him
because of what he is charged with he replied, “Maybe or maybe not. They poriray me
as a killer and violent. Someone who does viclence baecause he wants to. He cannot
control myself. So they say.”

The defendant stated that he had been in court roughly ten times before. He stated that
he role of his lawyer was “to defend me from these charges.” He described the role of
the prosecutor as “to prosscute me, to prove I'm guilty.” He described the role of the jury
as, “decides innocent or guilty.” He stated that there were 12 jury members and they
were selected by the prosecutor and defense attorney. He said that “all” the jurors had

to believe that he was guilty to be convicted. He described the role of the witnesses as
“to tell what they witnessed.” |
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1 At the time of the alleged conduct, Mr. Muhammad did not have mental disease
or defect that would have rendered him incapable of conforming his actions to
fawful requirements.

5  Mr. Muhammad demonsirated that he had the ability to control his behaviors at
the time of the alleged offenses of as evidenced by his ability to wait uniil an
opportune moment to caich the alleged victim off guard hefore he hit him.

3 The defendant stated that he hit the alleged victim in retaliation for his assertion
that the officer had previously urinated on his clotns. Retaliation is a reasonable
and rational explanation for his actions unrelated to mental disease or defect,

Respecifully,

O A4

! R. Clint Gray, M.D.
' Forensic Psychiatrist
Arkansas State Hospital
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Honorable Herb Wright C | |
4™ Division
401 West Markham Street RE: MUHAMMAD, ADBUL
Little Rock, AR 72201 | AR. Code Section: 5-2-305

Examination Date: 01/29/11

Pulaski County Docket No.: CR 2010-3956
Dear Judge Wright:

The above named individual was ordered for a forensic evaluation through the Pulaski
County Circuit Court. Attached you will find the completed forensic report performed at
the Arkansas State Hospital Forensic Services.

If you have any questions or concerns, please call me at {501} 686-9286.

Administrative Specialist

tf

cc.  John Johnson, Prosecuting Attorney
Patrick Benca, Defense Attorney
Pulaski County Circuit Clerk
Billy Burris, DBHS, Arkansas State Hospital
File

www.arkansas.gov/dhs

Serving more than one million Arkansans each year




Arkansas Department of Human Services
Division of Mental Health Services
Arkansas State Hospital

- Addendum to Forensic Report

IDENTIFYING INFORMATION:

DEFENDANT: Abdul Hakim Muhammad
DATE OF BIRTH: 7/9/85 - AGE: 25
' DEFENDANT'S HOSPITAL NUMBER: 702421
CHARGES AND DOCKET NUMBERS: Battery 2nd Degree (CR 10-3956}
DATE OF COURT ORDER: 12/22/10 | -
DATE OF EXAMINATION: 1/29/11 |
PLACE OF EXAMINATION: Forensic Unit of the Arkansas State Hospital
" DATE REPORT SUBMITTED: 217/11 |
" REFERRED BY: The Circuit Court of Pulaski Gounty, Ath Division

The falldwing information is an addendum to the Forensic Report dated 7/12/10 and
8/13/10. |

INTERVIEW AND DISCLOSURE OF NON-CONFIDENTIALITY:

At the outset of the examination | reminded Mr. Muhammad of the nature and purpose
of the examination, that his participation was voluntary and not confidential, that a report
would be made to the court and that testmony may be required. | reminded Mr.
Muhammad that he did not have to answer questions or make any self-incriminatory
statements. | informed the defendant that, because he had also been charged with a
crime that could lead to the death penalty, anything he told me might also be used in the
Capital Murder case in determination of his sentence if found guilty. He indicated that he
understood and was willing to be interviewed.

'FORENSIC EXAMINATION

OFFICIAL VERSION OF THE OFFENSE:

The Pulaski County Sheriff's Case Summary documented the following:

On October 25, 2010, Inmate Abdul Hakim Muhammad battered PCSO
Detention Lt. Emory Martin. While attempting to let Inmate Muhammad from his
cell to take a shower, inmate Muhammad charged at Lt. Martin and struck him in
the back of the head. Inmate Bledsoe was sprayed with OC Pepper Spray by
Sgt. Hoof, but Inmate Muhammad continued to resist. Additional Detention




personnel responded and Inmate Muhammad was finally subdued. Lt. Martin
sustained a minor laceration in the back of his head. -

The Pulaski County Sheriff's Officer Supplemental Report dated 10/25/10 documented
the following: | |

At approximately 2130 hours | went to T-Unit to assist the deputies in moving
inmate Jackson, Michael from T-302 to a sub day room. When that was finished,
| went to the lower front sub day room to help them move inmate Muhammad,
Abdulhakim M. | swept and mopped, T-326, the cell he was being transferred to.
When | stepped out of T-326 inmate Muhammad was walking toward the shower
with handcuffs on his wrists, in preparation for a strip search. Sgt. Lyons, Deputy
James and Deputy Roe were walking with him. | stepped aside to let them pass.
Inmate Muhammad raised both hands, took a giant step and lunged at me. |
turned my head to protect my face and he hit me in the back of the head with the
handcuffs. | twisted away and fell to the floor. Sgt. Lyons, Deputy Roe, Sgt. Hoof
and Deputy James pushed inmate Muhammad to the floor. He began fighting
with them. | got up and attempted several times to get on top of him with my right
knee to help hold him down. Sgt. Hoof called a Code Blue (Deputy Needs
Assistance) at approximately 2041 hours. Inmate Muhammad continued to fight
and kick while on the floor. Sgt. Hoof administered oleoresin capsicum (OC)
spray to inmate Muhammad’s eyes and nose. He fought harder. | got back to my
feet and began picking up radios, keys, pagers and the body alarm to keep them
away from inmate Muhammad. Other deputies arrived and assisted in getting
him under control and in the shower decontamination...

DEFENDANT’'S ACCOUNT OF THE OFFENSE:

According to Mr. Muhammad, the alleged victim had set up a situation so that Mr.
Muhammad could attack him. He explained that the alleged victim wanted Mr.
Muhammad to hit him so that he could file more charges against him. He stated that the
officer had previously filed terroristic threatening charges against him. Mr. Muhammad
said that he planned on retaliating against the officer because he had urinated on his
cloths in the past. He stated that he knew his clothes had been urinated on because he
could smell the urine on them.

Mr. Muhammad stated, the day of the alleged incident, he had been handcuffed in the
front of his body and not in the standard behind the back manner. He attributed this
change in routine as an invitation to hit the officer. Secondly, immediately before he hit
the officer, the officer had stood between him and the shower “standing like, ‘What you
gonna do?”

The defendant stated that he waited until the officer moved past him so that he could

strike him in the back of the head. He said that he waited until that moment to hit the

officer “to catch him off guard.” He stated that he did not hit the other officers because
they had not been the ones to urinate on his clothes in the past.” |
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INTERVIEW:

At the outset of the interview Mr. Muhammad stated that he remembered meeting with
me on the prior occasions. When | asked for him to update me on what had happened
to him since our last meeting he gave a logical and consistent history. He stated that he
went to court and tried to plea guilty to capital murder, but he was not allowed to enter
that plea at that time. He reported that, at court on 12/21/10, his lawyer had asked for
another Act 3 evaluation because his lawyer had claimed that his mental state had
deteriorated due to being in solitary confinement for 23 hours a day. He stated that the
judge allowed for another evaluation in “good faith” because the judge “didn’t want to do
it over again.” Mr. Muhammad said that his capital murder trial was scheduled to begin
on 2/23/11. |

Mr. Muhammad stated that he had just graduated off disciplinary status on 1/20/11. He
described the 4 times he had been placed under disciplinary status and his behaviors
that earned the restriction. | commented that he appeared much more well kemp from
the last time | have interviewed him. He said that previously he had been growing out
his hair to have dreadlocks. He also described refusing to talk to people his lawyer had
hired to interview him. Mr. Muhammad stated that he had changed his actions because
he did not want to do anything further to delay his trial. He explained that previously he
refused interviews because he thought it would speed up his trial. Now, he described
feeling that if he cleaned up his hygiene and participated in all interviews he would not
inadvertently delay his trial further. He said that he expected to meet with the
nsychologist hired by his attorney next week. He said that he had threatened to fire his
lawyers in the past because he thought they were attempting to delay the trial on
purpose. He said, “Sitting in county jail for 20 months was pissing me off.” He wanted to
“hurry up and get it over.” Mr. Muhammad stated that now he's “‘come to realize its
going to take awhile.” |

Mr. Muhammad stated that he had been reading about his court case in the newspaper.
He spoke about reading excerpts of my previous reports that had been printed in the
paper. He said that he had agreed with all the information and my accompanying
opinions that he had read. | asked him if he had read anything that had been
inadvertently inaccurate about his history and he said, “No.”

The defendant described his mood at the time of the interview as “normal.” He said that
he had been sleeping “good” and he continued to do things he found interesting while
incarcerated. For example, he read the Quran, Bible, the Psalms and newspapers. He
denied any hallucinations, delusions, or thoughts of self harm. When | asked how he
had been holding up in solitary confinement he replied, “'m in a room 23 hour. Anybody
would act different, but my mental state is normal. There's no one to talk or mess with
you or cause problems. It's like a lion in a cage and you poke him with a broomstick.
Pretty soon he'll bite. It's caged. People tried that with me and they suffered for it.”

Muhammad, Abdulthakim




Mr. Muhammad stated that he was prescribed no medications at the time of this
interview. He also descried the one time he had been placed on suicide watch while
incarcerated. He stated that he had written his will and.the jailers took it as a suicide
‘gesture and placed him on suicide watch for three days. He explained that he had just
rewritten his will because the FBI has seized his original when they took his safe.

EXAMINATION OF FITNESS TO PROCEED:

On 1/29/11, | administered the Fitness Interview Test - Revised (FIT-R) to Mr.
Muhammad. The FIT-R is a structured interview that assists in the assessment of a
defendant's understanding of the trial process and issues related to his own defense.

Mr. Muhammad stated his primary lawyer was Claiborne Ferguson and his secondary
lawyer from the public defender’s office was Patrick Benca. Mr. Muhammad reported
that he was being tried in state court and not federal court for several reasons. He said
that the primary reason charges had been filed in state court was because they could
seek the death penalty. Secondly, he said that he had been under federal surveiliance
and the federal government did not want to have to disclose their anti-terrorist
surveillance information in a courtroom trial. Finally, he said that he might still have to
face federal charges, but that they wanted to wait to file until his present charges are
ruled upon so that they do not repeat any mistakes that the state prosecutors might

make. o |

According to the defendant, if found guilty of this present charge it could be used
against him in his capital murder charge during the sentencing phase. He said that the
prosecutors were seeking the death penalty against him. He said that, if found guilty in
his capital murder case, he would go to Varner Supermax prison and that “automatic
appeals” in his case would be filed. He stated that he read in the paper that a possible
sentence for his charge could be 12 years.

Mr. Muhammad stated that he was charged with “2nd Degree Battery.” He stated that
this was a serious charged because it was a felony and could be used against him in his
capital murder charge. When asked if he thought that people might be afraid of him
because of what he is charged with he replied, “Maybe or maybe not. They portray me
as a killer and violent. Someone who does violence because he wants to. He cannot
control myself. So they say.” |

The defendant stated that he had been in court roughly ten times before. He stated that
he role of his lawyer was “to defend me from these charges.” He described the role of
the prosecutor as “to prosecute me, to prove I'm guilty.” He described the role of the jury
as, “decides innocent or guilty.” He stated that there were 12 jury members and they
were selected by the prosecutor and defense attorney. He said that “all” the jurors had
to believe that he was quilty to be convicted. He described the role of the witnesses as
“to tell what they witnessed.” |
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1. At the time of the alleged conduct, Mr. Muhammad did not have mental disease
or defect that would have rendered him incapable of conformlng his actions to
lawful requirements.

2. Mr. Muhammad demonstrated that he had the ability to control his behaviors at
the time of the alleged offenses of as evidenced by his ability to wait until an
~ opportune moment to catch the alleged victim off guard before he hit him.

3. The defendant stated that he hit the alleged victim in retaliation for his assertion
that the officer had previously urinated on his cloths. Retaliation is a reasonable
and rational explanation for hls actions unrelated to mental disease or defect.

Respectfully,

Zf//

R. Cllnt Gray, M.D.
Forensic Psychiatrist
Arkansas State Hospital
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1 IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF PULASKI COUNTY, ARKANSAS

FOURTH DIVISION
STATE OF ARKANSAS D ORIGINAL
V. CR 10-3956
ABDULHAKIM MUHAMMAD 7.9.85 ' MALE BLACK
FULL NAME OF DEFENDANT DATE OF BIRTH SEX RACE

 #**DEFENDANT IN PULASKI COUNTY JAIL***

BATT. 2ND ' FILED 12722710 10:54:30
OFFENSE ' skl €

NSE CHARGED _ Pat 0°Brien Pulaski Circuit Clerk
JOHN JOHNSON | QRS'

PROSECUTOR’S NAME & ADDRESS

PATRICK BENCA
DEFENSE ATTORNEY’S NAME & ADDRESS

ORDER FOR MENTAL HEALTH EVALUATION OF DEFENDANT

On the Motion of Defense Counsel, or upon reason to believe that mental disease or defect will become an issue in the cause, this Court orders:
1. That subject to the provisions in Ark. Code Ann, Sec. 5-2-305 all proceedings in the prosecution shall be immediately suspended.
2.  That the defendant shail undergo examination by: -

2) One or more qualified psychiatrists or qualified psychologists a¢ a designated receiving facility whe has successfully

completed a forensic certification course approved by the Department of Human Services( name, address and phone number of
psychiatris¢/psychologist)

b) One or more qualified psychiatrists who has successfully completed a forensic certification course approved by the
Department of Human Services and who is practicing within the Arkansas State Hospital: (name, address and phone number of psychiatrist)

X ¢) To be determined by the Director of the Division of Mental Health Services of the Department of Human Services:
d) Committing him/her to the Arkansas State Hospital or other suitable facility; (specify facility and address)

for a period not to exceed 30 days, of for a long period as determined by the Court, as follows:
3. The person/institution designed above to conduct the examination shall provide a report to this Court which shall include the following:
a) A description of the nature of the examination:
b) A diagnosis of the mental condition of the defendant: (check if needed). Include intelligence quotient of Defendant;
¢)  An opinion as to this capacity to understand the proceedings against him/her and to assist effectively in his’her own defense;
d)  An opinion as to the extent, if any to which the capacity of the Defendant to appreciate the criminality of his conductr to
Conform his/her conduct to the requirements of law was impaired at ¢ he time of the conduct alleged;
(check if needed) e) If divected by the court, an opinion as to the capacity of the Defendant to have the eulpable mental state that is required
to establish an element of the offense charged; and |
f}  Hthe examination cannot be conducted because of the unwillingness of the Defendant to participate therein, the report shall so state
and shall include, if possible an opinion as to whether such unwillingness of the Defendant is a result of mental disease or defect.
3. The report may include a separate explanation reasonably serving to clarify the diagnosis or the examiner’s opinion.
4. All public agencies are hereby ordered to make all existing medical pertinent records available for inspection and copying to the
Examiners and counsel.

5.  The examiner shall mail a copy of the report to the defense attorney and prosecuting attorney and shall file a copy with ¢he clerk
of the court.

IT IS SO ORDERED QM ~—)

Signature of Judge

/ij,_?,’)_,-

(Print judge’s name)

/

- AR
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nereuse ATTORNEY:

kansas

In The Circuit Court of Pulask| County,
Fourth Dmsmn
- 401 W. Markham
Suite 440 < Littie Rock, AR
(501) 340-8593

STATE OF ARKANSAS

VS. ~ No. _
:; 5 ?

We wish to advise that in the above case  ——— .,
charging the offenseof oo oo———
has been set for in the 4th Division, Circuit Court,
Pulaski County, Little Rock, Arkansas, on _..__.._...__.,.i..._.__....__.___._._..._..___.___

Pl %

Pleas§ bei n;::tifiec; that your |-aresence is required. mm"””””"I”""m"”l ”mu ””"”’
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF PULASKI COUNTY, ARKANSAS = =
~~ HON. HERBERT WRIGHT - 4TH DIVISION 6TH CIRCUIT ,

BENCH WARRANT ~ CaseNumber:soCR-103956 . .

CRIMINAL DIRECT FILED Warrant No.: 60CI-10-6847 |
Total Bond to Collect: Date Printed: November 30,2010~ . . RES

The State of Arkansas To Any Law Enforcement Officer in the State:

IT APPEARING that there are reasonable grounds fer believing that ABDULHAKIM MUJAHID MUHAMMAL has
cemmltted the fdllewmg effenees .

Counts | Vldlatlens
1 51 3-202 BATTERY - 2ND DEGREE
A(AN) CLASS D FELONY
VIOLATION DATE 25-OCT-10 --

in the County of PULASKI ydu are hereby commanded to arrest and brin
COURT OF PULASKI COUNTY -

Gwen under my hand and seal of said court th:s November 30, 2010.

PAT
e BY:
BOND SET 10,000 SURETY
Defendant’s Last Known Address: Sex: M Race: BLACK
ABDULHAKIM MUJAHID MUHAMMAD Height: 6'0"
12201 MARALYNN RD #4205 Weight. 185 Ibs.

LITTLE ROCK AR 72211 - '~ Eyecolor. BROWN  Hair color: BLACK
| D.L. State: AR D.L. Number: 930317050

Date of Birth: 07/09/1985
SID Number: 3390862
System ID: 930317050

WARRANT RETURN

BOND POSTED$ o __ DCASH  DOIRECOGNIZANCE [PROF 010%
| certify thatlheve served the within warrant of errest onthe __ ____ dayof. DECOQ 1010 ,20 -

at___ e e e

by: El taklng |nto my custody the wnthln named ABDULHAKIM MUJAHID MUHAMMAD .
1 dellvenng a copy of this warrant of arrest to the within named ABDULHAKIM MUJAHID MUHAMMAD
personally and releesmg the accused upon promlse to appear in the CIRCUIT COURT OF PULASKI COUNTY on

h t d h , ’ 2 o
the court date stated herein. S ..;m..f mus..a_éuﬁ@f aHt:HiFi"

0 Warrant returned unexecuted |
1 Warrant recalled
_ ' . 4 %&QMZZZQ _
Arrestlng Oﬁ' icer end Agency T | /\ /\D OO\

il?ei‘i‘%";‘:fémg T HIIIHIHHHIIIIIHIIIHIHHIHHHIIIIHIIIII

6

00CR-10-3956  601-60100012207-011 \(B\ '%(/

STATE V ABDULHAKIN MUJAHID M 3 Pages

PULASKI €0 12/09/2010 11,27 M
CIRCUIT COURT Tk
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ARKANSAS ARREST/ DISPOSITION REPORT - | |

- . Pulaski County Sheriff’s Office
- DEFENDANT DDENTIFICATION - — At Agency Name 7(:: S Nl O L coo 0
MName  Lasi First Middle
v LA BS A 50U £ AP s T 0
STREET ADDRERS , | ' | | PHONE NUMBER |

SOCIAL SECURITY NO.

W oS

S Date of birth Place of Birth - -
M I:I WH]TE [ American Indian or Alaskan Native [] Unknown Mo  Day Year '
OF ACK [0 Asian or Pacific [slander
Hair : Eyes - Heigﬁ Scars and Marks
N earest Relative | . , o | | Phone Number |
Il b it LS00 WSt J22 L4ty WS T o | Fof P - TG
P | - - - ing Oﬂigm - - | o
/) et S DA s 2519

Date of Arrest | Time of_Arrest.- : | er L Report Number Agem:y Received Fro Agency Transferred to
/D Dro|2rSP | =

Case / Docket Number Statute No. Chm'ge Description Law Enforcement Action Date of Action

$-re-gol| | o7  Fa s it O

Facts of Arrest (PC) _ ,

Complainant and Witness Names | Address | | T Phone Right Thumb Print

Comiplainant

Witness | |

Witness

| Court Date: J/J’é'"

Court Trying Case: Z / 7

' Citation to Appear — ~ IMPORTANTNOTICE

1 promise to appear at the above stated time, place and court. |

- : . | Failure to appear at the stated time, place and court may result
in your arrest and shall constitute a separate offense for which
Name and Title of Issuing Officer you may be prosecuted. |

: (Signature of Accused) | | | | S

o TRAVELING COPY B




ARKANSAS ARREST / DISPOSITION REPORT

L S Pulaski County Sheriff’s Office
’“ ,.,_.PEFENDANT mENIIﬂCMION | wMg Agency Nmz--’ 7~ 5,& [ NCICC E ] ﬁ l cooc o
ki | br A #A/% A4 | j?/)’fi)éfd H,/A:: PP I P L/J///V;);,- o
STREET ADDRESS | ' | | _ PHONE NUMBER

"SOCIAL SECURITY NO.
LT A F e 3 7

E]WHITE Dmcanlndlanorﬂdaskan}lanve I:I Unknown
P ﬁCK ] Asian or Pacific Islander

/5 /fe

Scars and Marks

Fhone Number

S -~ 5 T

Y lle

7 fe ,z.»*u#«ﬂ;;#fsh ] A

Arrestmg Officers

Date of Am:st Time of Arrest | Agency Agency Transferred to
o '_'ﬂ / o | -/S";) |
| Case: / Docket Number Statute No. Law Enforcement Action Date of Action
< S A i / fj:,r £ 7S A dC T IR /),f---;f- Oy | fe=l |
Fa!.;ts of A?rast {PCy
* | o | L . e s ) " “,»‘"'; - _ “‘Ti“c:‘*-_ e
l,,(_.f' /ﬁ s //” S o A A LS . L s j vl
Complainant and Witness Names . Address — | ‘ . Phone - - Right Thumb Print ]
Conplainant
Witness '
Court Trying Case: | /g | ' — N
/ : Court Date: /& 7)¢= ?Zf.f Time:
Citation to Appear - - IMPORTANT NOTICE | :

I promise to appear at the above stated time, place and court.

Failure to appear at the stated time, place and court may result
| | in your arrest and shall constitute a separate offense for which
Name and Title of Issuing Officer you may be prosecuted. : | |

(Signature of Accused)

PROSECUTOR COPY o - - o




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT, OF PULASKI COUNTY, ARKANSAS
DIVISION

STATE OF ARKANSAS PLAINTIFF
Vs ,  lOcrR J0- 8956

ABDUL HAKIM M MUHAMMAD DEFENDANT
AKA CARLOS BLEDSOE:#

ILED 11716710 11037011 |
FELONY INFORMATION ‘at BFBrien Pulask: Circuit Clerk
COUNT 1 LR |

Larry Jegley, Prosecuting Attorney of the Sixth Judicial District of Arkansas, in the name, by the
authority, and on behalf of the State of Arkansas, charges ABDUL HAKIM M MUHAMMAD AKA CARLOS
BLEDSOE with the crime of violating ACA § 5-13-202 BATTERY IN THE SECOND DEGREE committed
as follows, to wit: The said defendant(s), in Pulaski County, on or about October 25, 2010, intentionally or
knowingly, without legal justification, caused physical injury to LT E MARTIN, of the PULASKI COUNTY

SHERIFF DEPARTMENT — REGIONAL DETENTION FACILITY, whom he knew to be a law enforcement
officer, while such officer was acting in the line of duty, against the peace and dignity of the State of

Arkansas.

Larry Jegley
Prosecuting Attorney

By: g — -
ﬁé uty 'r?&ecuting Attorney

\

ATV

HOCR-10-3956  601-60100011539-017
STATE ¥ RBDULHAKIN MUJAHID M 7 Pages
PULASKT GO 11/16/2010 11:37 AN
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF PULASKI COUNTY, ARKANSAS
HON. HERBERT WRIGHT - 4TH DIVISION 6TH CIRCUIT

BENCH WARRANT Case Number: 60CR-10-3956
(o PR CRIMINAL DIRECT FILED Warrant No.: 60CI-10-6847
*u Total Bond to Collect: Date Printed: November 30, 2010

The State of Arkansas, To Any Law Enforcement Officer in the State:

IT APPEARING that there are reasonable grounds for believing that ABDULHAKIM MUJAHID MUHAMMAD has
committed the following offenses:

Counts Violations
1 5-13-202 BATTERY - 2ND DEGREE
A(AN) CLASS D FELONY
VIOLATION DATE: 25-OCT-10 - -

BOND SET 10,000 SURETY
Defendant’s Last Known Address: Sex: M Race: BLACK
ABDULHAKIM MUJARHID MUHAMMAD Height: 6'0" |
12201 MARALYNN RD #4205 Weight: 185 Ibs.
LITTLE ROCK AR 72211 Eye color. BROWN Hair color: BLACK
D.L. State: AR D.L. Number: 930317050
Date of Birth: 07/09/1985
SID Number: 3390862
System ID: 930317050
WARRANT RETURN
BOND POSTED:$ 0 CASH 0 RECOGNIZANCE OPROF O10%
| certify that | have served the within warrant of arrest on the day of , 20
at

by: 0O taking into my custody the within named ABDULHAKIM MUJAHID MUHAMMAD .
[ delivering a copy of this warrant of arrest to the within named ABDULHAKIM MUJAHID MUHAMMAD
personally and releasing the accused upon promise to appear in the CIRCUIT COURT OF PULASKI COUNTY on
the court date stated herein.
0 Warrant returned unexecuted
0 Warrant recalled

Arresting Officer and Agency
SID Number: - L
Arrest Tracking Number:




L I .

COVER SHEET
STATE OF ARKANSAS
CRIMINAL INFORMATION

This criminal information cover sheet or the standard criminal information form is required by Supreme Court Administration Order
Number 8 to be completed for every defendant and filed by the prosecutor. The data contained herein shail not be admissible as

evidence in any court proceeding or replace or supplement the filing and service of pleadings, orders, or other papers as required
by law or Supreme Court rule. |

County PULASKI District Sixth Case Number
Judge | Division | Filing Date

Stylé ofcase State of Arkansas v. Abdul Hakim M Muhammad

Prosecutor Providing Information:

Is This an Amended Information ] VYes Is D being charges as a Habitual? 1 Yes
If Yes, are you Are multiple D’s Charged in the information? | Yes
Adding Offense(s)? Yes : o
Dropping Offense(s)? Yes Is victim under the age of 147 Yes
Changing Offense(s)? Yes
CO-Defendants:
Defendant’'s Full Name Date of Birth Race Sex SID# Arrest Date
Abdul Hakim M Muhammad 7/9/1985 B Male 3390862 10/25/2010
Address (Street, City, State, Zip) SS# Driver's License No.
AR 930317050
12201 Mara Lynn #4205 Arrest Tracking # Prosecutor's File
Little Rock, AR 72205 2637667 4929
KNOWN ALAISES:

Carlos Bledsoe

The attached information accuses the above named defendant of the following crime(s):

Code # Offense | AICIS Offense Date Counts FiM Class

5.13-202 BATTERY IN THE SECOND DEGREE 10/25/2010 1 F | D

Circuit Clerk/Deputy Clerk
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Pulaski County District Court . | Court Activity Q 10;25;19 | ;
3001 W. Roosevelt Court Activity Time: 08:30 AM AR

Little Rock, Arkansas 72204 - Court Activity Type: Jail Docket .
(501) 340-6832 .
Defendant: Muhammad, Abdul Hakim Party Nr: 642999
12201 Mara Lynn #4205
Little Rock, Arkansas 72205
DOB: 07/09/85 DL: AR /930317050
Race: Black SSN: 414-65-1353
Sex: Male Employer:
Case # Plea Offense Fined
CR-10-7934 M (1st) Battery 3rd Degree A Misd _
CR-10-7935 (1st) Aggravated Assauit on Corrections Officer Fel
CR-10-7936 (1st) Battery 2nd Degree D Felony
CR-10-7937 (1st) Obstruct. Government Operation ~
CR-10-7938 (1st) Terroristic Threatening A Misd -

CR-10-7939 | (1st) Interference W/Law Enforcement Officer

Special Instructions: H\ f_k ‘ N J Y r/ @ ‘ ' A

Bond: Cash

m Surety . .. Next Court Date: g -
‘l'
Personal Recognizance | Time: / ’

Release, After Processing, If No Other Holds:

t o
Upon Release Report To Court Clerks Office:

COMMITMENT

If Defendant Is Committed On Above Fines - Please Use This As The Commitment.

Fines: Give Credit Time Served Toward Fine Since Intake Date.

Court (flerk




S ARREST/ DISPOSIT NB

X
Pulaski County Sheriff’s Ofh
DEFENDANT IDENTIFICATION ‘ Arresting Agency Namc NCIC CODE

NmLast

Muﬁﬁ"“mﬁb ' PrR.DUdc\i?%R,IM

‘% MH:E:H WITY 3¢ 43&5"
l_ TVL 5

yi¥ zaall

9303177050 _
%Tﬁ I‘\.I'E'Iie,‘ﬁi‘EHITE £] American Indian or Alaskan Native T Unkn Eﬁn&mw . Mo Date of birth | | Place of Birth -
Can Indian ve OWn ‘
UF RLBLACK DAsianﬂrPaciﬁcI‘;mer | : DN:CP;?S;M{: , .,7 gy é’fs FTEM M-— SSE’ c
e Weight Height | Scars and Miarks

BLACK | Rrown (B S &'0

" Name Nearest Relative - - Phone Number

MELNTN  BLESDE ' - - @at)aﬁ 2-~3491
23,10 2149

lee of Arrest
L
Agency Received From
Case / Docket Number Statute Na,

| S-\3-a\ | | m:f'%;ﬁfn %F | FEL-D
- S-a~-202 | | 34 DEGREL BATTR: feL-D
. 3 < 54-162 | | OR§TRUCTIEN F SOV OPeATIING s - P

) <13 90| | TERQROKISTIC TORCHTECNIATT o
5 S-S~ oM | m;aﬂ@nw& e al feo-c |10,

Facts of Arrest (PC)

Date of Arrest - " Time of Arrest Agency Transferred to

Law Enforcement Action Pate of Action

Complainant and Witness Names Address Phone Right Thumb Frimt

Complainant

Witness

Witness

| Court Trying Case: | | '
| ourt T1ying Lase p C' ' ic ,,,,,__,,_ ____________ e | QnmgﬂgniL &3. 2{3(0 Time: C)Bm

o g
b’ oy : .
A o ¢ i = F, U N A i - '
‘ | i T £ {oaixiiy, e AR S A ¥ Fimelt T, T k
‘1 . [ f‘:" B il :2"-:. U, "‘. LT O B [P v R T Faegt B b . i 27 i Lae b TR R
Itatlon to E‘ ot TR N 5 Sy R ¥ ‘. o . N I T e e gt Rk L BT :--:‘
" ‘-—.‘-‘!'.i ONF el gy L AL D : © FA LoETIL e oo T T - T L pLp —E )
SRR TR SR ¢ et gL 4 - b R R S S - i X 3 ¥g e 1
% i b = et e R e : : R e v ] i, e ey 2 A s Ly
I promise to ar at the above stated i Ak o EUNA® h & N o T &% SN AV B B =
Y : LT Aie s M TRTE Rt oy C 1,-“ PNy T e WL L tlan A b 2y oy ok
e - a1} g L ate A e W Pl ™ g T R K ol N Ay el R
.'_ - o i ia o A R LR [ L TR IR Er R = Sl
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. A RE e s My W

Ftifne, place and court may result
a separate offens hich

(




o Ws ARREST / DISPOSIT N os
- Pulaski County Sheriff’s Ofthe
DEFENDANT IDENTIFICATION Arresting Agency Name NCIC CODE

Name | Last - | First | Middle
MyHAMmMAp ABRDULLAKIM
&ED&OE‘ ALOS

STREET ADDY PHONE NUMBER

L&%l m;ﬁJM LY NV

State

Y LITTLE Lo X AL .@72.2 /]

Eployer  Occupetion
| 4303|1030 | | |
Sﬁr' RACE Ethmicity Date of hirth Place of Birth
M | O WHITE [T American Indian or Alaskan Native [J Unknown 1 Hispanic Mo Dsy  Yemr
EBLACK [ Asian or Pacific Islander & Not Hispanic 0-7 0? /?55’ ﬁ- W N E'fj [E
B Eyes | Weight Height | Scars snd Marks
PLK Bas /| 85 o/
Name Nearest Relative ' . _ Phone Number
f3LFDSa£; MeLvey | (F0)) 292-3427
Place of Arrest Officers
Date of Arrest Time of Amrest Agency Transferred to
(0:25;10 2140 _
Case / Docket Number | Statute No. Law Enforcement Action Date of Action
B ﬂ"IIS-'*H' 10:25,19
Facts of Arrest (PC)
*
Complainant and Witness Names - Address - Phone | Right Thlmb Prizt
Complainant
Witness
‘Witness
Court Trying Case: .
| P[; Dt | Court "D'Ei“e _ﬁ Q‘f*iﬂt‘ maah Tiwmow
I promise to appear at the above stated time, place and court. T ﬁ % %;: e " E‘j o S m %3 @
| Failure tn appear at the tllll._, place and _(;b
| in your 5rrest and shalFcafistitufe s
Name and Title of ISSlilllg Officer yﬂ“ may be pmecutgd .
(Signature of Accused) J,r
RECORDS COPY |




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT PF PULASKI COUNTY, ARKANSAS

| DIVISION
STATE OF ARKANSAS PLAINTIFF
VS (o© cR | O~ 345k
ABDUL HAKIM M MUHAMMAD DEFENDANT
AKA CARLOS BLEDSOEg
FELONY INFORMATION FILED 11716710 11:37: 16
COUNT 1 Fat (PBrien Pulaski Circuit Dierd

TR

Larry Jegley, Prosecuting Attorney of the Sixth Judicial District of Arkansas, in the name, by the
authority, and on behalf of the State of Arkansas, charges ABDUL HAKIM M MUHAMMAD AKA CARLOS
BLEDSOE with the crime of violating ACA § 5-13-202 BATTERY IN THE SECOND DEGREE committed
as follows, to wit: The said defendant(s), in Pulaski County, on or about October 25, 2010, intentionally or
knowingly, without legal justification, caused physical injury to LT E MARTIN, of the PULASKI COUNTY
SHERIFF DEPARTMENT - REGIONAL DETENTION FACILITY, whom he knew to be a law enforcement
officer, while such officer was acting in the line of duty, against the peace and dignity of the State of

Arkansas.

Larry Jegley

Prosecuting Attoiney
By: /Z% \"Yﬁ

Deputy pr?&ecuting Attorney

;o
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6TH CIRCUIT )
ABDULHAKIM MUJAHID O
MUHAMMAD

- CARLOS BLEDSOE |
12201 MARALYNN RD #4205 FD: 16-NOV-2010
LITTLE ROCK, AR 72211
BLACK / M DOB: 07/09/1985

Custody Status: DOC

HON, HERBERT WRIGHT - 4TH DIVISICN 600R‘10'3956

DOC

Bond Amount: $

Counts: Charges: |

1 5-13-202 BATTERY - ZND DEGREE
Habitual:
OMNIBUS HEARING : . TIME: JURY TRIAL: TIME: e —
. MOTION CUTOFF: BENCH TRIAL: TIME: ATTY:
DATE

“_— i imnlbinioebolid

0;27\7- .40 m@jj—% Rersen Am'fg Nﬂl’z __é__/’__rfé- _ HL‘J' '/IE
s &L&WL A2 BYO o7
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SaCR-10-2056  601-601008

STATE  ABDULKAKIM MUJARLD HU 1 Page

011950 12:00 P
PULASKT €O B I o
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HON. HERBERT WRIGHT - 4TH DIVISION
6TH CIRCUIT Goc R"'1 0"3956

ABDULHAKIM MUJAHID D T
MUHAMMAD

AKA - CARLOS BLEDSOE

12201 MARALYNN RD #4205 FD: 16-NOV-2010
LITTLE ROCK, AR 72211

BLACK / M DOB: 07/09/1985

Custody Status: DOC

DOC
Bond Amount: S
Counts: Charges:
1 5-13-202 BATTERY -~ 2ND DEGREE
Habitual:
OMNIBUS HEARING : TIME: JURY TRIAL: ___ TIME:
MOTION CUTOFF: BENCH TRIAL: TIME: ____ ATTY:

ril | D et %fﬁ P pork Rk 31511 0 s~
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HON. HERBERT WRIGHT - 4TH DIVISION
6TH CIRCUIT GOC R'1 0'3956

ABDULHAKIM MUJAHID D o T
MUHAMMAD

AKA - CARLOS BLEDSOE

12201 MARALYNN RD #4205 FD: 16-NOV-2010
LITTLE ROCK, AR 72211

BLACK / M DOB: 07/09/1985

Cugstody Status: DOC

DOC

Bond Amount: $

Counts: Charges:

1 5-13-202 BATTERY - 2ND DEGREE

Habitual:
OMNIBUS HEARING :_é-’ [}wi( TIME: % ?f JURY TRIAL: et TIME: / Ay
MOTION CUTOFF: BENCH TRIAL: TIME: ATTY:

DATE

7




UHIMINAL DOCKET |
- OFFICE OF THE CIRCUIT CLEHK
- STATE OF ARKANSAS
- PULASKI COUNTY CIHCUIT. COURT

'HON. HERBERT WRIGHT - 4TH 60CR-10-3956
'DIVISION 6TH CIRCUIT - J

ABDULHAKIM MUJAHID MUHAMMAD ID: 930317050 _
AKA - CARLOS BLEDSOE AD: 25-0CT-2010

12201 MARALYNN RD #4205 FD: 16~N0v—2010_
LITTLE. RQCK,.AR 72211 o D | o
- BLACK / MlDOB 07/09/1985

Presumptwe Sentence . Custody Status: DOC
.Doc

Seriousness Level of Offense —————  Bond Amount: §
Cnmmal Hnstory Score Counts:  Charges: . .
_ ' 1 - 5-13-202 ~ BATTERY - 2ND DEGREE
‘Habitual: - S ' —

~ ATTORNEY:____

- ATTY_

OMNIBUSHEARING: TIME:

~ —__MOTIONCUT-OFF: ____ ' BENCH TRIAL: - . TIME:
. .1 _ | ﬁ\’ﬁ-q§  C;J“" “‘F'éw/j /hWGLZJNM“  ; | ¢1 Jéﬂq#/:;gu,,
ﬂ?;‘é’"' — /] -flp(’ AN ' '

DATE ' - N REGISTEFI OFACTIONS
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